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Pre-Procurement Market Sounding –  
Consulting Engineering Services (Designer)

Follow-up Questions – Payment Structure

As a follow-up to the pre-procurement market sounding sessions in late 2022 and early 2023, Metro Vancouver is 
asking interested participants to provide feedback on two different payment structures being contemplated for the 
consulting engineering services (Designer) contract and the evaluation of the forthcoming Request for Proposals 
(RFP). This feedback will be considered by Metro Vancouver in determining the payment structure of the contract.

Please provide your feedback via email to IonaWWTPTeam@metrovancouver.org by March 6, 2023. Any feedback 
received after this date may not be considered. 

The two payment structures currently contemplated are structured on a time and materials basis, with a maximum 
upset limit for each of Phases 1-4. During the contracting period, budgets will be negotiated for each deliverable 
that the Designer will be required to report against. The two structures are described below.

 1. Standard Rate Approach

This approach involves payment on a time and materials basis based on all-inclusive hourly rate tables that 
are submitted by proponents as part of their proposals. The rates would be based on the seniority and 
expertise of personnel proposed. These rates would be all inclusive and would include estimated travel 
costs. Sub-consultant costs would be charged based on negotiated costs plus an appropriate mark-up 
for administration (e.g. 5%). Annual escalation of rates would be based on published Vancouver, British 
Columbia Consumer Price Index values. This has historically been Metro Vancouver’s standard practice for 
consulting contracts.

Questions:

a. Do you anticipate your team being located primarily within the Metro Vancouver region or across 
geographic locations? Would you use a different rate table for those team members located outside of 
the Metro Vancouver region? What challenges do you anticipate in administering different rate tables?

b. It is recognized that at the proposal submission stage, proponents would not likely have 100% of their 
personnel identified for Phase 1 – what challenges would you see if trying to allocate hours to rate levels 
not yet identified?

c. How would you determine which team members would be subject to the rate structure as opposed to 
the sub-consultant payment structure?
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 2. Direct Cost Plus Multiplier Approach

This approach involves payment on a time and materials basis based on actual direct cost of each personnel 
plus a multiplier. The direct costs would be all-inclusive hourly rates calculated from the direct compensation 
(salary + payroll taxes + benefits) paid to your personnel. The multiplier would include overhead, profit, and 
travel costs.  

This approach has the potential to better align the payment of services with the actual cost incurred of 
the personnel working on the project, which may vary significantly by geography. It also facilitates more 
meaningful collaboration between Metro Vancouver and the Designer on staffing based on expertise and 
skill required to undertake the deliverable without the limitations of a standard rate structure. Additionally, 
escalation would not need to be addressed in the Designer Contract. Payment would be directly related to 
the annual increases in actual staff compensation.

Questions:

a. Do you think this rate structure would achieve the potential benefits that Metro Vancouver is 
contemplating?

b. How difficult would this structure be to administer from an invoicing perspective?

c. Should different locations have different multipliers needing to be factored into the financial evaluation? 
For example, personnel located outside Metro Vancouver may have travel and other costs and therefore 
need a higher multiplier. In addition, would team members with different skills/experience levels have 
different multipliers?

d. It is recognized that at the proposal submission stage, proponents would not likely have 100% of their 
personnel identified for Phase 1 – what challenges would you see if trying to allocate hours to locations 
for personnel not yet identified?

e. How would you determine which team members would be subject to the rate structure as opposed to 
the sub-consultant payment structure?

f. Have you had experience with this approach? If so, can you please provide examples of projects where 
this has been used.
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In addition to the questions above, Metro Vancouver welcomes any additional feedback on these or other payment 
structures that you believe may assist us in our determination.

If you have questions, comments or feedback you would like to share with the IIWWTP Projects team, please 
connect with us at IonaWWTPTeam@metrovancouver.org. 
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